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1                   P R O C E E D I N G S

2           (Hearing started at 9:10 A.M.)

3           HEARING OFFICER MORROW:  This hearing is in the

4 matter of Department of Elementary and Secondary Education

5 versus John Paul Hess and has been designated Hearing

6 No. 13-015.  This hearing is being held pursuant to

7 Section 168-071 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri which

8 authorizes the State Board of Education to suspend or

9 revoke certificate of license to teach if the certificate

10 holder has pleaded to or been found guilty of a felony or

11 a crime involving moral turpitude under the laws of this

12 state or any other state of United States or any other

13 country whether or not sentence is imposed.

14           Administrative rules adopted by the State Board

15 of Education pursuant to this statute authorizes the

16 Commissioner of Education to designate a hearing officer

17 in these matters.  My name is Kristen Morrow.  I've been

18 designated to hear this case.  Unless otherwise provided

19 for in Section 168-071, this hearing is being held

20 pursuant to the procedural rules of Chapter 536, the

21 Administrative Procedures Act.

22           The certificate holder, Mr. Hess, is not present

23 at this hearing and is not represented by counsel.  Let's

24 let the record show that Margaret Landwehr is -- and Todd

25 Lucas are present on behalf of the State.  So, Counsel, we

9
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1 will let you begin.

2           MS. LANDWEHR:  If I could do an opening

3 statement, please.

4           HEARING OFFICER MORROW:  Proceed.

5 OPENING STATEMENT BY MS. LANDWEHR:

6           John Paul Hess holds a lifetime certificate, a

7 license to teach in the area of English, grades 7 through

8 12, that was issued by the Department, interestingly

9 enough, in September of 1976.  So Mr. Hess was born on

10 June 25 of 1945.  The evidence will show that on or about

11 May 8, 2002, Hess was charged with two federal crimes,

12 Sexual Exploitation of Minors, one count, and one count of

13 Importation or Transportation of Obscene Matters under 18

14 USC Section 1462.

15           In February of 2003, February 3, he pled guilty

16 to one count on the second charge of Importation or

17 Transportation of Obscene Matters and the first count was

18 dismissed on a motion by the United States.  As a result

19 of his guilty plea, he was placed on probation for a term

20 of five years and was ordered to pay a special assessment

21 in the amount of $100 and a fine of 5,000.

22           The Importation or Transportation of Obscene

23 Matters under Section 18 USC 1462 provides, in pertinent

24 part, that whoever brings into the United States or any

25 place subject to the jurisdiction of the United States or

10
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1 knowingly uses any express company or other common carrier

2 or interactive computer service for carriage in interstate

3 or foreign commerce of -- and there are several things,

4 I'll just mention a few, but any obscene, lewd, lascivious

5 or filthy book, pamphlet, picture, motion picture, film,

6 paper, letter, writing, print or other matter of indecent

7 character or any article or thing capable of producing the

8 obscene, lewd, lascivious or filthy phonograph recording,

9 electrical transcription or sound, as well as any type of

10 drugs, medicine, article or anything like that.  And

11 whoever -- it also provides that whoever knowingly takes

12 or receives from such express company or other common

13 carrier or interactive computer service or anything which

14 is herein made unlawful.

15           So the conviction -- we propose that the

16 conviction of Importation or Transportation of Obscene

17 Matters constitutes a conviction of a crime involving

18 moral turpitude and the above crime requires Hess to be

19 registered on Missouri's sex offender registry.  He is

20 currently registered in Missouri and he is in compliant

21 status.  He just recently reregistered this month on

22 December 3 and I have the paperwork to evidence that.  And

23 we also will show that you can find his sex offender

24 registry right on the Missouri patrol's internet site.

25           So the Section 168-071 of the Revised Statutes

11
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1 authorizes the Board to discipline a certificate if the

2 holder has been found guilty of a felony or a crime

3 involving moral turpitude and same thing with regs.  So at

4 this point in time, I'd like to call my first witness,

5 Margery Tanner.

6           HEARING OFFICER MORROW:  Okay.  If you'll be

7 sworn, please.

8                      MARGERY TANNER,

9 of lawful age, being produced, sworn and examined on

10 behalf of the Petitioner, says:

11                        EXAMINATION

12 QUESTIONS BY MS. LANDWEHR:

13      Q.   Could you please state and spell your name for

14 the record?

15      A.   Margery Tanner, M-A-R-G-E-R-Y T-A-N-N-E-R.

16      Q.   And by whom are you employed?

17      A.   The Department of Elementary and Secondary

18 Education.

19      Q.   And how long have you been employed by the

20 Department?

21      A.   Almost 20 years.

22      Q.   And what's your current position with the

23 Department?

24      A.   I'm the Director with the Office of Educator

25 Quality.

12
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1      Q.   And what are your responsibilities as the

2 director?

3      A.   I license educators for the state of Missouri.

4      Q.   And do your duties include maintaining the

5 teacher licenses or certification records?

6      A.   Yes.

7      Q.   And are these certification records prepared and

8 maintained in the regular course of business?

9      A.   Yes.

10      Q.   And are they -- these records prepared and

11 maintained at or near the time of the events that are

12 recorded therein?

13      A.   Yes.

14      Q.   And are you aware of the Department's case

15 against John Paul Hess?

16      A.   Yes, I am.

17      Q.   If you could turn to what's been marked as

18 Petitioner's Exhibit 1 and take a moment to look at it.

19      A.   All right.

20      Q.   Do you -- do you recognize it?

21      A.   Yes, I do.

22      Q.   And can you tell us what it is?

23      A.   This is a certification record for John Paul

24 Hess.

25      Q.   And is this record kept by the Department in the

13
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1 regular course of business that you just outlined above?

2      A.   Yes, it is.

3      Q.   And was it made by -- and the Department -- I'm

4 sorry, is it a true and accurate copy of John Paul Hess's

5 certifications?

6      A.   Yes, it is.

7      Q.   And does the Department maintain the status of

8 this record?

9      A.   Yes, it does.

10      Q.   And it was made in the regular course of

11 business?

12      A.   Yes.

13      Q.   And was it also made by someone who has

14 knowledge about the information --

15      A.   Yes.

16      Q.   -- that it contains?

17      A.   Yes.

18      Q.   Okay.  So what type of certificate --

19           MS. LANDWEHR:  I'm sorry.  I'd like to offer

20 into evidence Petitioner's Exhibit 1.

21           HEARING OFFICER MORROW:  Petitioner's Exhibit 1

22 will be admitted into the record.

23      Q.  (By Ms. Landwehr) And does John Paul Hess -- can

24 you tell me what certificate he does hold?

25      A.   He holds a lifetime certificate for the area of

14
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1 English, grades 7 through 12.

2      Q.   And when was this certificate issued?

3      A.   September 1, 1976.

4      Q.   And in what areas is he certified to teach?

5      A.   English, grades 7 through 12.

6      Q.   And so this certificate, does it expire at any

7 time?

8      A.   No, it does not.

9      Q.   And is this one -- is it one of the older

10 certificates?  Like have you changed the process at this

11 point?

12      A.   Yes.  Lifetime certificates were issued up until

13 1988, so it was issued prior to that.

14      Q.   And so -- but under this previous system, he

15 would be able to hold it for a lifetime unless something

16 should intervene?

17      A.   Correct.

18      Q.   And so is this certificate active and current?

19      A.   Yes, it is.

20      Q.   And does the Department require certificate

21 holders to keep the Department apprised of their

22 addresses?

23      A.   Yes.

24      Q.   And is there a regulation to that effect?

25      A.   Yes, there is.

15
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1      Q.   Let me hand you what is a copy of regulation 5

2 CSR 20-400.  If you can turn to page two of what I've

3 handed you.  This is a -- 5 CSR 20-400.150; is that

4 correct?

5      A.   Yes, it is.

6      Q.   And could you read to us the subsection 12 and

7 then read the B part of 12 for me?

8      A.   It states that, "The holder of a certificate of

9 license to teach shall ensure that DESE has a current

10 legal name and address.  A holder of a certificate of

11 license to teach whose address has changed shall inform

12 DESE in writing of the change within 90 days of the

13 effective date of the change."

14           MS. LANDWEHR:  And I would ask if the hearing

15 officer could take official notice of this regulation.

16           HEARING OFFICER MORROW:  Okay.  I'll take

17 official notice of 5 CSR 20-400.150, Application for

18 Certificate of License to Teach, in particular subsection

19 12.

20      Q.  (By Ms. Landwehr) And what address do you have on

21 file for Mr. Hess?

22      A.   The certification record shows that we have

23 none.

24      Q.   And so that's what all the blank fields are in

25 the middle of this record?

16
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1      A.   That is correct.

2      Q.   So the only one that does show is his name --

3      A.   Correct.

4      Q.   -- is that correct?  And then he has an educator

5 ID?

6      A.   Correct.

7      Q.   And then if you look on the right side, I have

8 redacted a Social Security number, but that would be on

9 the portion of the record that you can see?

10      A.   Absolutely.

11      Q.   Is that correct?

12      A.   Correct.

13      Q.   And then it also shows his certification?

14      A.   Correct.

15      Q.   Then if you turn to page two of this -- of

16 Exhibit 1, does this record reflect whether he's currently

17 teaching or is an administrator in Missouri?

18      A.   No, it does not reflect that he is employed in a

19 public school in Missouri.

20      Q.   So it -- that probably wasn't phrased very well.

21 Is he currently teaching in -- as a teacher as far as your

22 records tell us?

23      A.   No.  As far as we know, he is not.

24      Q.   And then how far back -- I know you all changed

25 your system at some point as well.  How far back would

17
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1 this record go?

2      A.   The core data record that reflects teaching?

3      Q.   Yes.

4      A.   It goes back ten years.

5      Q.   Ten years.  So at least you know at this point

6 he has not taught for ten years?

7      A.   In Missouri, correct.

8      Q.   In Missouri.

9           HEARING OFFICER MORROW:  Okay.  There's a page

10 two?  I've just got one page.

11           MS. KEILHOLZ:  There's not much to it.  It's

12 just like one line.  Turn the page --

13           HEARING OFFICER MORROW:  Okay.

14           MS. KEILHOLZ:  I did that, too.

15           MS. LANDWEHR:  Second page, yeah.

16           HEARING OFFICER MORROW:  Thank you for

17 clarifying that.  Gotcha.

18      Q.  (By Ms. Landwehr) And then if you could please

19 turn to Exhibit 4.  Do you recognize this?

20      A.   Yes, I do.

21      Q.   And what is it?

22      A.   This is a printout from the Missouri State

23 Highway Patrol sex offender registry on the internet.

24      Q.   And can you tell me what date this was printed?

25      A.   It was printed out on December 17, 2013.

18
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1      Q.   And did you search the internet yourself for

2 this record through the Highway Patrol's website?

3      A.   Yes.

4      Q.   And is this a true and accurate copy of the

5 printout that you searched for and then ultimately printed

6 out?

7      A.   Correct.

8      Q.   And so can you tell me, this -- does this have

9 an address on it?

10      A.   Yes, it does.

11      Q.   And what's -- what address is that?

12      A.   It states that Mr. Hess lives at 1152 Terrace

13 Drive in Richmond Heights, Missouri 63117, ZIP code.

14      Q.   And it also reflects his status, does it not?

15      A.   It does.

16      Q.   And what status is he in as far as this registry

17 is concerned?

18      A.   It states that he is compliant.

19      Q.   And did you then place this record into your

20 recordkeeping system with the Department?

21      A.   Yes, we did.

22      Q.   Okay.  So is this the true and accurate -- you

23 said it was the true and accurate copy.

24           MS. LANDWEHR:  I'd like to offer Exhibit 4 into

25 evidence.

19
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1           HEARING OFFICER MORROW:  Petitioner's Exhibit 4

2 will be admitted into the record.

3           MS. LANDWEHR:  I don't have any other questions

4 for this witness.  Thank you, Miss Tanner.

5           HEARING OFFICER MORROW:  Thank you.  Okay.  You

6 can continue.

7           MS. LANDWEHR:  I'd like to call Miss Keilholz.

8           HEARING OFFICER MORROW:  If the witness will

9 step up and be sworn, please.

10                       DANA KEILHOLZ,

11 of lawful age, being produced, sworn and examined on

12 behalf of the Petitioner, says:

13                        EXAMINATION

14 QUESTIONS BY MS. LANDWEHR:

15      Q.   Could you please state and spell your name for

16 the record?

17      A.   Dana Keilholz, D-A-N-A K-E-I-L-H-O-L-Z.

18      Q.   And, Miss Keilholz, by whom are you employed?

19      A.   The Department of Elementary and Secondary

20 Education.

21      Q.   And how long have you been employed by the

22 Department?

23      A.   Over 20 years.

24      Q.   And what is your current position with the

25 Department?

20



 HEARING   12/19/2013

www.midwestlitigation.com Phone: 1.800.280.3376 Fax: 314.644.1334
MIDWEST LITIGATION SERVICES

Page 16

1      A.   I am Legal Assistant for the General Counsel in

2 Governmental Affairs.

3      Q.   And how long have you had that position?

4      A.   Around two years.

5      Q.   And what are your duties as Legal Assistant?

6      A.   One of the things that we do are arrange

7 discipline hearings for certificate holders who have had a

8 complaint filed against them.

9      Q.   And do those duties include serving notices of

10 hearings?

11      A.   Yes.

12      Q.   And did you send a notice of this hearing today

13 to John Paul Hess, the respondent?

14      A.   Yes.

15      Q.   And if you could please turn to Exhibit 2 and

16 tell me if you recognize it?

17      A.   Yes, I do.

18      Q.   And what is it?

19      A.   It's a letter that we send out to the

20 certificate holder notifying them that a complaint has

21 been filed and sets a date for the hearing.

22      Q.   And does the Department maintain this record --

23 these documents as records?

24      A.   Yes.

25      Q.   And was this record made in the ordinary course

21
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1 of business by a person with relevant knowledge and

2 information as to the notices?

3      A.   Yes.

4      Q.   And then I notice Exhibit 2 also has a copy of

5 something else along with it.  Can you tell me what that

6 is?

7      A.   Along with the notice, the letter, we send a

8 copy of the complaint.

9      Q.   And so -- sorry, go ahead.

10      A.   So that's it.

11      Q.   So is Exhibit 2 an accurate copy of the notice

12 and complaint that was sent to Respondent Hess?

13      A.   Yes.

14           MS. LANDWEHR:  Then I'd like to offer into

15 evidence Petitioner's Exhibit 2.

16           HEARING OFFICER MORROW:  Petitioner's Exhibit 2

17 will be admitted into the record.

18      Q.  (By Ms. Landwehr) Miss Keilholz, when was the

19 notice sent?

20      A.   October the 7th, 2013.

21      Q.   And what information was contained in the

22 notice?

23      A.   It was the date and time of the hearing that had

24 been scheduled, the complaint that caused the hearing to

25 be set and then the state statutes and the regulations

22
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1 that gave us the authority to do that.

2      Q.   And did it also include the location of the

3 hearing?

4      A.   Yes.

5      Q.   And it was -- are we in the room where the

6 location -- I'm sorry, the date, time, location, is that

7 where we are today?

8      A.   Yes.

9      Q.   And what address did you mail this letter to?

10      A.   The letter was sent to 1152 Terrace Drive,

11 Richmond Heights, Missouri 63117.  It was sent first class

12 mail and certified mail with return receipt requested.

13      Q.   And how did you obtain that address?

14      A.   It was on the complaint that we received from

15 the Attorney General's Office.

16      Q.   And you said you sent it by first class mail and

17 certified mail.  Have you received the certified mailing

18 receipt back?

19      A.   No.

20      Q.   And what about the first class mailing?

21      A.   No.

22      Q.   So you have not received either one of them

23 back?

24      A.   No.

25           MS. LANDWEHR:  Then I have no further questions

23
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1 of this witness.

2           HEARING OFFICER MORROW:  Okay.  Thank you.  You

3 may proceed.

4           MS. LANDWEHR:  I do have another exhibit to

5 offer.  It's Petitioner's Exhibit 3 and it is an affidavit

6 from the records custodian at the Highway Patrol.  And

7 Lieutenant McCollum produced a business record affidavit

8 for me and in it it has the judgment in the criminal case

9 of the federal crime on the first couple of pages, as well

10 as it starts off with a fax that they received from the

11 federal government.  And after that, there is the Missouri

12 Sex Offender Registration, which is actually on the last

13 three pages.

14           And if you notice, the address -- current

15 address listed is 15 -- 1152 Terrace Drive in St. Louis

16 and it also lists his date of birth and other things that

17 he had to list as well.  And then the last page of this

18 last little section has the submitting agency as well that

19 they sent in the notification.

20           And if you notice the date that it was sent was

21 December 3 of 2013, he reregistered with the Missouri

22 Highway Patrol.  With -- it looks like there was a

23 detective that he came and signed the paperwork in front

24 of and then it was submitted to the Highway Patrol.  And

25 so I would like to offer into evidence Petitioner's

24
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1 Exhibit 3.

2           HEARING OFFICER MORROW:  Okay.  Petitioner's

3 Exhibit 3 will be admitted into the record.

4           MS. LANDWEHR:  And, Your Honor, I would like to

5 have the record left open.  We are -- developed a new

6 process working with the Department in terms of getting

7 exemplified records from the federal court, certified or

8 exemplified, and part of what -- the reason why I'm going

9 to that length, you do have this record from the U.S.

10 District Court certified by the Department, but they

11 are -- or by the Highway Patrol, but they did not create

12 that record of the conviction.  And even though they are

13 relying it to register, I just felt to make a better

14 record, I would like to hold the record open and as soon

15 as I receive the certified record from the federal court,

16 I would -- asking for the charges as well as the judgment,

17 I'd like to submit those into evidence.

18           HEARING OFFICER MORROW:  Do you have any sense

19 of time about when that might occur or are we just --

20           MS. LANDWEHR:  Within -- I would say at least

21 within, the latest, a month, but I would hope it would be

22 here within like two weeks.

23           HEARING OFFICER MORROW:  Okay.  Do we want to

24 set a time or do you want me to just allow the record to

25 be open until such time that you receive the federal --

25
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1           MS. LANDWEHR:  That would be the best.

2           HEARING OFFICER MORROW:  Okay.  In that case,

3 I'll allow this hearing record to remain open until such

4 time as you receive the federal court exemplified record.

5           MS. LANDWEHR:  I apologize for the delay.  The

6 Department is -- there's charges for it with the federal

7 court.  State court we get -- the state agencies get for

8 free, but we're working through a new process system with

9 DESE actually paying for it.

10           HEARING OFFICER MORROW:  Okay.

11           MS. LANDWEHR:  And having it billed through you

12 all as opposed to coming through the Attorney General's

13 Office.  So that was part of the hitch.  But once -- that

14 should not happen again.

15           HEARING OFFICER MORROW:  Okay.  Well, we will --

16           MS. LANDWEHR:  I apologize for the delay, but I

17 felt it was best to go ahead and go on and have the

18 hearings.

19           HEARING OFFICER MORROW:  Okay.  In that case, we

20 will leave the record open until such time as that is

21 received and once it is received, we will put it into the

22 record as an exhibit.

23           MS. LANDWEHR:  And I do know that it is in the

24 process.

25           HEARING OFFICER MORROW:  Okay.  Great.

26
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1           MS. LANDWEHR:  I learned yesterday.

2           HEARING OFFICER MORROW:  Okay.  Anything

3 further?

4           MS. LANDWEHR:  Just a brief closing statement,

5 if I could.

6 CLOSING STATEMENT BY MS. LANDWEHR:

7           The evidence shows that Mr. Hess does hold a

8 lifetime certificate to teach and it also shows that he's

9 been found guilty of one count of Importation or

10 Transportation of Obscene Matters in violation of federal

11 law.  Hess's conviction is a crime involving moral

12 turpitude and constitutes cause to discipline his license.

13           The Missouri Supreme Court has defined moral

14 turpitude as an act that is contrary to the accepted and

15 customary rules and duties between people or an act done

16 contrary to justice, honesty, modesty and good morals, and

17 that was in the Frick case that was decided by Missouri

18 Supreme Court in 1985.

19           But also, in the case of Brehe versus the

20 Missouri Department of Elementary and Secondary Education,

21 this case involved a teacher -- disciplining a teacher

22 certificate like the one we have today and they had three

23 different classifications of crimes of moral turpitude.

24 The first one were crimes that necessarily involved moral

25 turpitude, they called Category 1 crimes, the second one
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1 are crimes that are so obviously petty that there's no

2 moral turpitude, and then the third one would be crimes

3 that may be saturated with moral turpitude, but you do

4 need to look at the facts and circumstances in a Category

5 3 crime.

6           This crime is a crime that necessarily involves

7 moral turpitude.  I believe it would fall under Category 1

8 and I've got two Administrative Hearing Commission cases

9 that I'd like to give to you, Your Honor, to take a look

10 at.  One is Winn versus Department of Insurance.  They're

11 actually both Department of Insurance cases and these were

12 both license denials, so they're a little different, but I

13 feel like they are instructive, especially given the fact

14 that they -- at least the second one I know came out --

15 no, they both came out after the Brehe case.

16           But in Winn, this person did violate the federal

17 law by using means of interstate commerce to knowingly

18 transfer obscene materials to a minor and he sent digital

19 photographs of parts of his body over the internet.  And

20 this -- the Administrative Hearing Commissioner did cite a

21 Duncan case that it relied on that said it's defined moral

22 turpitude as baseness, vileness or depravity, or acts

23 contrary to justice, honesty, modesty or good morals.  But

24 the agency did find that it was a Category 1 crime and

25 necessarily involved moral turpitude.  So he did not
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1 receive an insurance producer license.

2           And then there was a similar one, a state case

3 that came out of St. Charles County, but it was Bacon --

4 the crime came out of St. Charles County.  It was Bacon

5 versus Department of Insurance and in that one, he

6 possessed compact discs that depicted a minor under the

7 age of 18 as a participant and observer of sexual contact

8 with Bacon.  So that, again, was a crime of moral

9 turpitude and he was not -- did not meet the

10 qualifications for a surety on becoming a bail bondsman.

11           So these crimes are similar to Hess and we ask

12 that the Board find that Hess's crime of Importation or

13 Transportation of Obscene Materials is a crime of moral

14 turpitude and we ask the Department to consider the

15 evidence before it and impose the appropriate discipline

16 on Mr. Hess's certificate.

17           HEARING OFFICER MORROW:  Okay.  Thank you,

18 Counsel.

19           MS. LANDWEHR:  And so I'll give you these two

20 cases.  I printed them out for you.

21           HEARING OFFICER MORROW:  Thank you.

22           MS. LANDWEHR:  And then, Your Honor, I do have

23 the -- I gave you a notebook, but I do have the originals

24 in a folder.  My only thing that I did not do was in

25 Exhibit 3 that came from the Highway Patrol, just to
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1 preserve the integrity of it, I did not redact his Social

2 Security on this page.  So I don't know how you --

3           HEARING OFFICER MORROW:  I am content with what

4 you provided here, the copies.

5           MS. LANDWEHR:  Well, do you want the original

6 with the certification that the Highway Patrol did?

7           HEARING OFFICER MORROW:  All right.  If you

8 would like to go ahead and provide me with that.

9 Otherwise, the copies are fine.

10           MS. LANDWEHR:  I can go ahead, if you want me to

11 redact it here.  Because technically, in Circuit Court,

12 you can't provide anything with Social Security numbers.

13           HEARING OFFICER MORROW:  Right.  Well, we would

14 prefer it.

15           MS. LANDWEHR:  All right.  I will redact it,

16 then, and hand it to you.

17           MS. KEILHOLZ:  I can do it.

18           MS. LANDWEHR:  We'll get a marker and I'll give

19 it to you.

20           HEARING OFFICER MORROW:  Anything else?

21           MS. LANDWEHR:  That's all I had.

22           HEARING OFFICER MORROW:  Okay.  The hearing will

23 conclude at this time.  Once again, let the record show

24 that at this time Mr. Hess was notified of the hearing or

25 to the best of our knowledge and at this time it would be
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1 about 9:35 and that he was not here personally or through

2 counsel.  We'll also note that the hearing record remains

3 open until such time as you are able to provide the

4 federal court documents that you have indicated you will

5 provide.  And then at some point in time this matter will

6 be brought before the State Board of Education at a day

7 and time to be set by the Commissioner of Education.  So

8 with that, I guess we're done.

9           (Proceedings concluded at 9:36 A.M.)
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